UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA

PACIFIC AGRI-PRODUCTS, INC.,

Case No.

Plaintiff,

v.

JBS USA FOOD COMPANY HOLDINGS, JBS S.A., SWIFT BEEF COMPANY, JBS PACKERLAND, INC., TYSON FOODS, INC., TYSON FRESH MEATS, INC., CARGILL, INC., CARGILL MEAT SOLUTIONS CORPORATION, NATIONAL BEEF PACKING COMPANY, AND MARFRIG GLOBAL FOODS S.A.

Defendants.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

DOCKET A L A R M Find authenticated court documents without watermarks at <u>docketalarm.com</u>.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
<u>I ug</u>

I.	NATURE OF ACTION 1				
II.	JURISDICTION AND VENUE				
III.	PAR	PARTIES			
	A.	Plaintiff			
	B.	Defendants			
	C.	Co-Conspirators			
	D.	Unity of Purpose Between Tyson, JBS, and Cargill's Respective Parent and Subsidiary Companies			
IV.	TRA	DE AND COMMERCE			
	А.	Beef Distribution Chain			
	B.	Structure of Beef Industry			
		1. The Beef Meatpacking Industry is Highly Concentrated			
		2. The Meat-Packing Market Features High Barriers to Entry 28			
		3. Beef is a Commodity Product			
		4. The Demand for Beef is Inelastic			
V.	VIO	VIOLATIONS ALLEGED			
	А.	Defendants Agreed to Reduce Slaughter Volumes			
	B.	The Agreement Resulted in Significantly Reduced Slaughter Volumes by the Defendants during the Class Period			
	C.	Defendants Closed or Idled Plants, and Refrained from Expanding Capacity 			
	D.	Defendant Publicly Signaled Each Other to Keep Slaughter and Capacity Restrained			
	E.	The Collusive Agreement to Reduce Resulted in an Increased Spread Between the Fed Cattle and Beef Prices			

	F.	-	and JBS Attribute Their Record 2017 & 2018 Profits to "Visibility" ne Beef Supply Chain			
VI.	ADDITIONAL FACTORS SUPPORTING THE EXISTENCE OF DEFENDANTS' CONSPIRACY					
	A.	Defen	dants Took Advantage of Numerous Opportunities to Collude	18		
	B.	B. The Defendants Supply Restraints Were Not Offset and Were Furt Exacerbated by Reductions in Imports				
VII.	ANTITRUST INJURY					
VIII.	THE DEFENDANTS ACTIVELY CONCEALED THE CONSPIRACY 56					
	A. Fraudulent Concealment					
		1.	The Tyson Defendants	57		
		2.	The JBS Defendants	58		
		3.	The Cargill Defendants	59		
		4.	National Beef	50		
	B.	Conti	nuing Violations	55		
IX.	CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS					
X.	VIOLATIONS OF SECTION 1 OF THE SHERMAN ACT (15 U.S.C. § 1) 69					
XI.	REQUEST FOR RELIEF71					
XII.	JURY TRIAL DEMANDED					

CASE 0:19-cv-02720-SRN-KMM Document 1 Filed 10/16/19 Page 4 of 78

Plaintiff Pacific Agri-Products, Inc., individually and on behalf of a class of all persons and entities that purchased Beef, as that product is defined herein, directly from JBS S.A., JBS USA Food Company Holdings, Swift Beef Company, JBS Packerland, Inc., Tyson Foods, Inc., Tyson Fresh Meats, Inc., Cargill, Inc., Cargill Meat Solutions Corporation (a/k/a Cargill Protein), National Beef Packing Company, and/or Marfrig Global Foods S.A. (collectively, the "Defendants") from at least as early as January 1, 2015 until the present (the "Class Period"), brings this action under the antitrust laws of the United States against Defendants, and demands a trial by jury.

I. NATURE OF ACTION

1. This is an antitrust class action for injuries sustained to the business and property of Plaintiff and the members of the Plaintiff Class from Defendants' violations of Section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1.

2. From at least as early as 2015 through the present, the Defendants entered into a combination, contract or conspiracy to fix, maintain and raise the price of Beef to supracompetitive levels. They engaged in their scheme using mechanisms that included suppressing throughput of fed cattle¹ thereby creating artificial Beef supply restraints. The conspiracy to suppress the throughput of fed cattle led to Beef prices paid by Plaintiff and direct purchaser class members being higher than they otherwise would have been in a competitive market.

¹Fed cattle are steers and heifers raised and fed for the production and sale of high-quality beef products. Fed-cattle does not include culled cows, which are primary used for dairy production, and then at the end of their dairy producing life, are slaughtered for lower quality ground beef.

CASE 0:19-cv-02720-SRN-KMM Document 1 Filed 10/16/19 Page 5 of 78

3. Beef is meat from full-grown cattle that is approximately 2 years old. "Boxed beef" is a combination of cuts subject to USDA grading. Price is the primary competitive factor. "Beef" for purposes of this complaint is defined as "boxed beef" and case ready cuts, and does not include ground beef from culled cows.

4. The four Defendant families are the largest meatpacking companies in the world and the leading processors of the approximately 26,868 million pounds of boxed beef produced in the U.S. in 2018.

5. Defendants' scheme succeeded, in part, due to the structure of the Beef industry. The Defendants purchase fed cattle from farmers, process it into Beef, and sell the Beef to Plaintiff and other direct purchasers. Slaughter and packing are essential parts of the Beef supply chain.

6. The Defendants account for over 80% of the Beef supplied to the wholesale market, thus collectively controlling a crucial component of the distribution chain. The meatpacking industry, therefore, is highly concentrated. This high industry concentration affords the Defendants market power with respect to both upstream fed cattle purchases and downstream Beef sales. As the "big four" players in this highly concentrated industry, the Defendants interact frequently at industry events and trade association meetings, and their respective executives are well-acquainted. The market is therefore highly conducive to collusion. The existence of the Defendants' conspiracy is confirmed by at least one confidential witness account. A confidential witness previously employed by a Packing Defendant ("Witness 1"), has confirmed that each of the Defendants expressly agreed to reduce their respective purchase and slaughter volumes, which would have the effect of

Find authenticated court documents without watermarks at docketalarm.com.

DOCKET A L A R M



Explore Litigation Insights

Docket Alarm provides insights to develop a more informed litigation strategy and the peace of mind of knowing you're on top of things.

Real-Time Litigation Alerts



Keep your litigation team up-to-date with **real-time alerts** and advanced team management tools built for the enterprise, all while greatly reducing PACER spend.

Our comprehensive service means we can handle Federal, State, and Administrative courts across the country.

Advanced Docket Research



With over 230 million records, Docket Alarm's cloud-native docket research platform finds what other services can't. Coverage includes Federal, State, plus PTAB, TTAB, ITC and NLRB decisions, all in one place.

Identify arguments that have been successful in the past with full text, pinpoint searching. Link to case law cited within any court document via Fastcase.

Analytics At Your Fingertips



Learn what happened the last time a particular judge, opposing counsel or company faced cases similar to yours.

Advanced out-of-the-box PTAB and TTAB analytics are always at your fingertips.

API

Docket Alarm offers a powerful API (application programming interface) to developers that want to integrate case filings into their apps.

LAW FIRMS

Build custom dashboards for your attorneys and clients with live data direct from the court.

Automate many repetitive legal tasks like conflict checks, document management, and marketing.

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Litigation and bankruptcy checks for companies and debtors.

E-DISCOVERY AND LEGAL VENDORS

Sync your system to PACER to automate legal marketing.